City of Blue Lake

Arts and Heritage Commission

Meeting Agenda
Monday March 9th, 2026, at 6:30PM

Unless Otherwise Noted, All Items on the Agenda Are Subject to Action.
MEETING LOCATION: Skinner Store 111 Greenwood Road, Behind City Hall, Blue Lake.

Public Input can be given to the Commission by contacting the City Clerk at cityclerk@bluelake.ca.gov, or by
phone at 707-668-5655 until 4:00 p.m. on the date of the meeting. Written comments may be submitted via

B W o=

e R A

10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
12.
13.

email or by submission to the City Clerk at City Hall.

Call to Order

Establish a Quorum of the Commission

Approve the Agenda
Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items - The Public is invited to present petitions, make

announcements, or provide other information to the Commission that is relevant to the scope of
authority of the City of Blue Lake that is not on the Agenda. The Commission may provide up to 15
minutes for this public input session. To ensure that each individual presentation is heard, the
Commission may uniformly impose time limitations of 3 minutes to each individual presentation.
The public will be given the opportunity to address items that are on the agenda at the time the
Commission takes up each specific agenda item.

Appointment of Vice Chair per Resolution 1202

Brown Act Overview by Commission Liaison

Approve December 8th 2025, Meeting Minutes-Discussion/Possible Action
Follow Up on Land Acknowledgement - Discussion/Action

Community Listening Circles- Discussion/Action as Appropriate
A&H Commission Survey Draft Review- Discussion/Action as Appropriate

City Logo - Discussion - Possible Action

Banners On Greenwood Ideas - Discussion/Possible Action
Murals- Discussion/Action as Appropriate

Oral History Project- Discussion/Action as Appropriate

Upcoming Absence (Ruah) - Discussion/Action as Appropriate

Future Agenda Items and Announcements
Motion to Adjourn

A request for disability-related modification or accommodation(s), including auxiliary aid
or services, may be made by a person with a disability who requires a modification or
accommodation in order to participate in the public meeting, by contacting the City Clerk
at 707-668-5655, at least 24 hours prior to the commencement of the meeting.


mailto:cityclerk@bluelake.ca.gov

RESOLUTION NO. 1202

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLUE LAKE
ESTABLISHING THE CITY OF BLUE LAKE ARTS AND HERITAGE COMMISSION

The City Council of the City of Blue Lake, California, does resolve as follows:
Sectionl. Findings. The City Council hereby makes the following findings:

1. In order to preserve, promote and develop artistic and cultural expression in the City of Blue
Lake, the City Council seeks to establish an Arts and Heritage Commission to serve in an
advisory capacity to the City Council, Commissions, or City staff as directed by the City
Council, and as appropriate in matters pertaining to artistic and cultural preservation,
development and expression.

2. The Arts and Heritage Commission shall serve as policy advisors and proponents as
appropriate and will actively participate in the furtherance of the City’s artistic, cultural and
historical development. The Commission will serve as an advocate and as a community partner
in the design and development of the City’s cultural life and environment, as well as Haison with
the City government to achieve these goals.

Section 2. Membership.

The Arts and Heritage Commission shall consist of Seven (7) members who shall be selected for
their interest, knowledge or expertise in one or more of the interest areas listed below. The
commission may add advisory members, up to Ten (10}; advisory members will not serve as
voting members and their participation will not affect the establishment of a quorum. Advisory
members shall serve in a technical advisory capacity, based upon specific areas of expertise and
interest.

The Commission may develop Ad-Hoc committees of less than a majority of voting members to
assist with specific projects; Ad-Hoc committees will be established for a specific purpose, with
a defined timeframe for dissolvement. No fewer than Five (5) members of the Commission shall
be residents of the City of Blue Lake, and the remaining members must either live, work or
conduct business in the geographical area encompassed within a three (3) mile radius of Blue
Lake City Hall.

Commissioners will be appointed by the City Council; Commission members shall receive no
compensation. Advisory members will be appointed and removed by majority vote of the Arts
and Heritage Commission; Advisory members will not be bound by the resident requirements




established for the Commisstoners; Advisory members will be appointed based upon their
knowledge and skill sets and their ability to provide technical assistance to the Commisston.

Interest Areas:
¢  Wiyot Cultural Representatives, and/or Practitioners
¢ Artisans/Craftspeople
s  Writers
e Linguists
e Performers
¢ Historians
e Hobbyists/Handiworkers
¢ Performing Artists
e Musicians
e Architects
e Designers

Section 3. Appointments and Vacancies

When a vacancy occurs or is anticipated, for whatever reason, the Chair of the Commission shail
so certify to the City Council through the City Clerk. The City Council shall declare such
vacancy at its next regular meeting and publish notice of the vacancy for at least 30 days.
Commission members whose terms have expired or who had previously served on the Arts and
Heritage Commission and who desire reappointment shall be considered with other nominees.

Section 4. Term of Office

Commissioners appointed by the City Council will serve a term of two (2) years. Terms of
office for each commissioner will be for two years except those initially appointed for one (1)
year terms. Appointments will expire on January 30 of the particular year. All Commissioners
appointed after January 30 will continue with terms expiring on January 30 of the year closest to
the end of their term. When a Commissioner’s normal term of office is to expire, the City
Council shall declare the vacancy in December at a City Council meeting., The City Council will
have the City Clerk notice the vacancy(s) for at least 30 days and will fill the vacancy(s) as soon
as possible.

Section 5. Removal

A Commissioner’s term of office will terminate if a member fails to meet the established
membership criteria, or if the member misses, without cause, three consecutive meetings. Arts



and Heritage Commission members may be removed from office by a simple vote of three or
more City Council members.

Section 6. Officers

At its first meeting for the purpose of this year, and thereafier at the first meeting of each
calendar year, the Arts and Heritage Commission shall appoint among its members a
Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson and Secretary. The Chairperson shall set meeting agendas and
provide agenda for public posting 72 hours prior to the meeting; the Chairperson will preside at
meetings and call special meetings when necessary. The Vice-Chair shall, in the Chairperson’s
absence, perform the duties of the Chairperson. The Secretary shall record the minutes of the
meetings. The Commission shall designate a Commissioner to represent the Commission at City
Council meetings if the Commission wishes to make a presentation to the City Council or if the
City Council is considering an item that is under the purview of the Arts and Heritage
Commission.

Section 7. Records

Records of the Arts and Heﬁtage Commission proceedings, including such things as agendas and
meeting minutes shall be kept as public records and filed with the City Clerk.

Section 8. Meetings

The Arts and Heritage Commission shall hold regular meetings once monthly or as necessary on
call of the Commission Chair. Meetings will be held in the City Hall Chamber (Skinner Store},
unless adjourned to or scheduled for another place of meeting and written notice has been given.
Meetings will normally be held every month at an established time. All meetings and matters of
business of the Commission will be conducted in accordance with provisions of the Ralph M.
Brown Act, Government Code Section 54950 through 54926, currently enacted and amended by
the State of California. The Arts and Heritage Commission will provide regular updates to the
City Council either through formal presentation or written reports on a quarterly basis or upon
request by the City Council.

The following shall be the order of business at regular meetings of the Aris and Heritage
Commission:

Roll Call and Establishment of a Quorum
Approval of Minutes of Previous Meetings
Public Input

Action [tems

Adjournment

Rl Ll



Section 8. Duties

The Arts and Heritage Commission shall serve at the direction of the Blue Lake City Council;
the Commission shall have the following duties:

1. To serve in an advisory capacity to the City Council, and as appropriate or directed, the City
Manager, designated City staff and Commissions, in all matters pertaining to the preservation,
promotion and/or development of arts and heritage in the City of Blue Lake;

2. To review all policy issues as requested by the City Council, and as appropriate or directed,
the City Manager and designated City staff, regarding arts and heritage and to provide
recommendations as appropriate;

3. Recommend to the City Council, the City Manager and as appropriate or directed, designated
City staff the creation or amendment of rules, regulations, and ordinances relating to arts and
heritage activities in the City of Blue Lake;

4. To advise the City Council, as appropriate or directed, the City Manager and designated City
staff on the acquisition and/or use of property for the use and enhancement of arts and cultural

activities;

5. To foster relationships with other entities in order to promote and develop programs and
projects of mutual benefit;

6. To work with the City Council, as appropriate or directed, the City Manager and designated
City staff on implementation of the City’s strategic plan and the strategic vision for the City and
to provide recommendations on strategic plan updates;

7. Perform other duties relating to arts and culture as may be prescribed by the City Council.

Section 9. Conflict of Interest Code

The provisions of the City of Blue Lake’s Conflict of Interest Code shall apply to all members of



the Blue Lake Arts and Heritage Commission.

g
PASSED AND ADOPTED ON THIS 27 DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2022, BY THE
FOLLOWING ROLL CALL VOTE:

Ayes: Jones, vaa-m J Cuezar, FHnend

Noes:
Abstain:
Approved:
Adelene Jones, Mayor
City of Blue Lake
ATTEST:

(U
WL N ~—

anda Mager, City Cler
City of Blue Lake




RALPH M. BROWN ACT
JANUARY 2026

GOVERNMENT CODE - TITLE 5. LOCAL AGENCIES [50001 - 57607]
DIVISION 2. CITIES, COUNTIES, AND OTHER AGENCIES [53000 - 55821]

PART 1. POWERS AND DUTIES COMMON TO CITIES, COUNTIES, AND OTHER
AGENCIES [53000 - 54999.7]

CHAPTER 9. Meetings [54950 - 54963]
( Chapter 9 added by Stats. 1953, Ch. 1588. )

For Information Visit: CA Legislative Information Website
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes displayText.xhtml?division=2.&chapter=9.&part
=1.&lawCode=GOV &title=5.

Note: There are sequential gaps throughout the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government Code §§
54950-54963) primarily because of how the California Legislature updates and changes the Government
Code over time. When in question, visit the Ca Legislative website



https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?division=2.&chapter=9.&part=1.&lawCode=GOV&title=5
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?division=2.&chapter=9.&part=1.&lawCode=GOV&title=5

SECTIONS & TITLE

Table of Contents

Section Title Page

§ 54950 Declaration, intent; sovereignty 4

§ 54950.5 | Short title 4

§ 54951 Local agency 4

§ 54952 Legislative body, definition 4

§ 54952.1 Member of a legislative body of a local agency; conduct 5

§ 54952.2 “Meeting” defined; prohibited communications; social media; 5
exclusions from chapter

§ 54952.3 Simultaneous or serial order meetings of a subsequent 8
legislative body; compensation and stipends

§ 54952.6 Action taken 8

§ 54952.7 Copies of chapter to members of legislative body of local 8
agencies

§ 54953 Meetings to be open and public; attendance; teleconferencing; 8
remote participation as a reasonable accommodation

§ 54953.1 Testimony of members before grand jury 11

§ 54953.2 Legislative boy meetings to meet protections and prohibitions of 11
the Americans with Disabilities Act

§ 54953.3 Conditions to attendance 11

§ 54953.4 Public access to meetings held by eligible legislative bodies 11

§ 54953.5 Right to record proceedings; conditions; audio or video 17
recordings made by or under direction of local agencies

§ 54953.6 Prohibitions or restrictions on broadcasts of proceedings of 18
legislative body; reasonable findings

§ 54953.7 Allowance of greater access to meetings than minimal standards 18
in this chapter

§ 54953.8 Legislative body of local agency; use of alternative 18
teleconferencing provisions for notice and public participation

§ 54953.8.1 | Teleconference — health authority 22

§ 54953.8.2 | Teleconference — state of emergency 22

§ 54953.8.3 | Teleconference — quorum in singular location 23

§ 54953.8.4 | Teleconference — eligible neighborhood council 25

§ 54953.8.5 | Teleconference — eligible community college student 27
organization

§ 54953.8.6 | Teleconference — eligible subsidiary body 29

§ 54953.8.7 | Teleconference — eligible multijurisdictional body 31

Note: There are sequential gaps throughout the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government Code §§
54950-54963) primarily because of how the California Legislature updates and changes the Government
Code over time. When in question, visit the Ca Legislative website



SECTIONS & TITLE

Section Title Page

§ 54954 Time and place of regular meetings; special meetings; 33
emergencies

§ 54954 .1 Mailed or electronic notice to persons who filed written request; 35
time; duration and renewal of requests; fee

§ 54954 .2 Agenda; posting; action on other matters; posting on the internet 35
website

§ 54954.3 Opportunity for public to address legislative body; adoption of 38
regulation; public criticism of policies

§ 54954.4 Reimbursements to local agencies and school districts for costs 40

§ 54954.5 Closed session item descriptions 41

§ 54954.6 New or increased taxes or assessments; public meetings and 43
public hearings; joint notice requirements

§ 54955 Adjournment; adjourned meetings 47

§ 54955.1 Continuance 47

§ 54956 Special meetings 48

§ 54956.5 Emergency meetings in emergency situations 48

§ 54956.6 Fees 50

§ 54956.7 Closed Sessions, license applications; rehabilitated criminals 50

§ 54956.75 | Closed session; response to confidential final draft audit report; 50
public release of report

§ 54956.8 Real property transactions; closed meeting with negotiator 51

§ 54956.81 | Investment of pension funds; closed session 51

§ 54956.86 | Charges or complaints from members of local agency health 51
plans; closed hearings; members’ rights

§ 54956.87 | Records of certain health plans; meetings on health plan trade 52
secrets

§ 54956.9 Pending Litigation; closed session; lawyer-client privilege; 53
notice; memorandum

§ 54956.95 | Closed sessions; insurance pooling; tort liability losses; public 55
liability losses; workers’ compensation liability

§ 54956.96 | Joint powers agency; legislative body; Clean Power Alliance of 56
Southern California; closed session; confidential information

§ 54956.96" | Joint powers agency; legislative body; closed session; 57
confidential information

§ 54956.97 | Public bank; governing board or committee of governing board,; 58
closed session

' The assigned section number is the same for two separate provisions of the Brown Act due to sunset
and operational dates.

Note: There are sequential gaps throughout the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government Code §§
54950-54963) primarily because of how the California Legislature updates and changes the Government
Code over time. When in question, visit the Ca Legislative website



Section Title Page
§ 54956.98 Public bank; policy or bylaw; information from a closed session 59
considered confidential
§ 54957 Closed sessions; definitions; personnel matters; exclusion of 60
witnesses; matters posing a threat to critical infrastructure
§ 54957 .1 Closed sessions; public report of action taken 61
§ 54957.2 Minute book record of closed sessions; inspection 64
§ 54957.5 Agendas of public meetings; writings distributed less than 72 64
hours prior to meeting; public records; inspection
§ 54957.6 Closed sessions; salaries, salary schedules or fringe benefits 66
§ 54957.7 Disclosure of items to be discussed in closed sessions 67
§ 54957.8 Multijurisdictional law enforcement agency; closed sessions by 67
legislative or advisory body of agency
§ 54957.9 Disorderly conduct of general public during meeting; clearing of 68
room
§ 54957.95 | Disruptive behavior during meeting; removal of individual 68
§ 54957.96 | Disruptive behavior during meeting; application to public 69
participating via two-way telephone service or audiovisual
platform
§ 54957.10 | Closed sessions; local agency employee application for early 69
withdrawal of funds in deferred compensation plan; financial
hardship
§ 54958 Application of chapter 69
§ 54959 Penalty for unlawful meeting 70
§ 54960 Actions to stop or prevent violations of meeting provisions; 70
applicability of meeting provisions; validity of rules or actions on
recording closed sessions
§ 54960.1 Unlawful action by legislative body; action for mandamus or 70
injunction; prerequisites
§ 54960.2 Actions to determine past violations by legislative body; 73
conditions; cease and desist letters; responses by legislative
body; unconditional commitments to cease; resolutions to
rescind commitments
§ 54960.5 Costs and attorney fees 76
§ 54961 Meetings prohibited in facilities; grounds; identify of victims of 76
tortious sexual conduct or child abuse
§ 54962 Closed session by legislative body prohibited 77
§ 54963 Confidential information acquired during an authorized closed 77
legislative session; authorization by legislative body; remedies
for violation; exceptions

Note: There are sequential gaps throughout the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government Code §§
54950-54963) primarily because of how the California Legislature updates and changes the Government
Code over time. When in question, visit the Ca Legislative website



54950. In enacting this chapter, the Legislature finds and declares that the public
commissions, boards and councils and the other public agencies in this State exist
to aid in the conduct of the people’s business. It is the intent of the law that their
actions be taken openly and that their deliberations be conducted openly.

The people of this State do not yield their sovereignty to the agencies which serve
them. The people, in delegating authority, do not give their public servants the
right to decide what is good for the people to know and what is not good for them
to know. The people insist on remaining informed so that they may retain control
over the instruments they have created.(Added by Stats. 1953, Ch. 1588.)

54950.5. This chapter shall be known as the Ralph M. Brown Act. (Added by Stats. 1961, Ch.

115)

54951. As used in this chapter, “local agency” means a county, city, whether general
law or chartered, city and county, town, school district, municipal corporation,
district, political subdivision, or any board, commission or agency thereof, or other
local public agency. (Amended by Stats. 1959, Ch. 1417.)

54952. As used in this chapter, “legislative body” means:

(a)

(b)

()

The governing body of a local agency or any other local body created
by state or federal statute.

A commission, committee, board, or other body of a local agency,
whether permanent or temporary, decisionmaking or advisory, created
by charter, ordinance, resolution, or formal action of a legislative body.
However, advisory committees, composed solely of the members of
the legislative body that are less than a quorum of the legislative body
are not legislative bodies, except that standing committees of a
legislative body, irrespective of their composition, which have a
continuing subject matter jurisdiction, or a meeting schedule fixed by
charter, ordinance, resolution, or formal action of a legislative body
are legislative bodies for purposes of this chapter.

(1) A board, commission, committee, or other multimember body that
governs a private corporation, limited liability company, or other entity
that either:

(A) Is created by the elected legislative body in order to
exercise authority that may lawfully be delegated by the elected
governing body to a private corporation, limited liability
company, or other entity.

(B) Receives funds from a local agency and the membership of
whose governing body includes a member of the legislative body

Note: There are sequential gaps throughout the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government Code §§
54950-54963) primarily because of how the California Legislature updates and changes the Government

Code over time. When in question, visit the Ca Legislative website



(d)

of the local agency appointed to that governing body as a full
voting member by the legislative body of the local agency.

(2) Notwithstanding subparagraph (B) of paragraph (1), no board,
commission, committee, or other multimember body that governs a
private corporation, limited liability company, or other entity that
receives funds from a local agency and, as of February 9, 1996, has a
member of the legislative body of the local agency as a full voting
member of the governing body of that private corporation, limited
liability company, or other entity shall be relieved from the public
meeting requirements of this chapter by virtue of a change in status of
the full voting member to a nonvoting member.

The lessee of any hospital the whole or part of which is first leased
pursuant to subdivision (p) of Section 32121 of the Health and Safety
Code after January 1, 1994, where the lessee exercises any material
authority of a legislative body of a local agency delegated to it by that
legislative body whether the lessee is organized and operated by the
local agency or by a delegated authority. (Amended by Stats. 2002, Ch. 1073, Sec.
2. Effective January 1, 2003.)

54952.1. Any person elected to serve as a member of a legislative body who has not
yet assumed the duties of office shall conform his or her conduct to the
requirements of this chapter and shall be treated for purposes of enforcement of

this chapter as if he or she has already assumed office. (Amended by Stats. 1994, Ch. 32, Sec.
2. Effective March 30, 1994. Operative April 1, 1994, by Sec. 23 of Ch. 32.)

54952.2. (a) As used in this chapter, "meeting” means any congregation of a

(b)

majority of the members of a legislative body at the same time and
location, including teleconference location as permitted by Section
54953, to hear, discuss, deliberate, or take action on any item that is
within the subject matter jurisdiction of the legislative body.

(1) A majority of the members of a legislative body shall not, outside a
meeting authorized by this chapter, use a series of communications of
any kind, directly or through intermediaries, to discuss, deliberate, or
take action on any item of business that is within the subject matter
jurisdiction of the legislative body.

(2) Paragraph (1) shall not be construed as preventing an employee or
official of a local agency, from engaging in separate conversations or
communications outside of a meeting authorized by this chapter with
members of a legislative body in order to answer questions or provide
information regarding a matter that is within the subject matter

Note: There are sequential gaps throughout the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government Code §§
54950-54963) primarily because of how the California Legislature updates and changes the Government

Code over time. When in question, visit the Ca Legislative website



jurisdiction of the local agency, if that person does not communicate to
members of the legislative body the comments or position of any other
member or members of the legislative body.

(3) (A) Paragraph (1) shall not be construed as preventing a member
of the legislative body from engaging in separate conversations or
communications on an internet-based social media platform to answer
questions, provide information to the public, or to solicit information
from the public regarding a matter that is within the subject matter
jurisdiction of the legislative body provided that a majority of the
members of the legislative body do not use the internet-based social
media platform to discuss among themselves business of a specific
nature that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the legislative
body. A member of the legislative body shall not respond directly to
any communication on an internet-based social media platform
regarding a matter that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the
legislative body that is made, posted, or shared by any other member
of the legislative body.

(B) For purposes of this paragraph, all of the following definitions shall
apply:

(i) “Discuss among themselves” means communications made,
posted, or shared on an internet-based social media platform
between members of a legislative body, including comments or
use of digital icons that express reactions to communications
made by other members of the legislative body.

(ii) “Internet-based social media platform” means an online
service that is open and accessible to the public.

(iii) “"Open and accessible to the public” means that members of
the general public have the ability to access and participate, free
of charge, in the social media platform without the approval by
the social media platform or a person or entity other than the
social media platform, including any forum and chatroom, and
cannot be blocked from doing so, except when the internet-
based social media platform determines that an individual
violated its protocols or rules.

(c) Nothing in this section shall impose the requirements of this chapter
upon any of the following:

(1) Individual contacts or conversations between a member of a
legislative body and any other person that do not violate
subdivision (b).

Note: There are sequential gaps throughout the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government Code §§

54950-54963) primarily because of how the California Legislature updates and changes the Government
Code over time. When in question, visit the Ca Legislative website



(2) The attendance of a majority of the members of a legislative
body at a conference or similar gathering open to the public that
involves a discussion of issues of general interest to the public
or to public agencies of the type represented by the legislative
body, provided that a majority of the members do not discuss
among themselves, other than as part of the scheduled
program, business of a specified nature that is within the
subject matter jurisdiction of the local agency. Nothing in this
paragraph is intended to allow members of the public free
admission to a conference or similar gathering at which the
organizers have required other participants or registrants to pay
fees or charges as a condition of attendance.

(3) The attendance of a majority of the members of a legislative
body at an open and publicized meeting organized to address a
topic of local community concern by a person or organization
other than the local agency, provided that a majority of the
members do not discuss among themselves, other than as part
of the scheduled program, business of a specific nature that is
within the subject matter jurisdiction of the legislative body of
the local agency.

(4) The attendance of a majority of the members of a legislative
body at an open and noticed meeting of another body of the
local agency, or at an open and noticed meeting of a legislative
body of another local agency, provided that a majority of the
members do not discuss among themselves, other than as part
of the scheduled meeting, business of a specific nature that is
within the subject matter jurisdiction of the legislative body of
the local agency.

(5) The attendance of a majority of the members of a legislative
body at a purely social or ceremonial occasion, provided that a
majority of the members do not discuss among themselves
business of a specific nature that is within the subject matter
jurisdiction of the legislative body of the local agency.

(6) The attendance of a majority of the members of a legislative
body at an open and noticed meeting of a standing committee
of that body, provided that the members of the legislative body
who are not members of the standing committee attend only as
observers. (Amended (as amended by Stats. 2020, Ch. 89, Sec. 1) by Stats. 2025, Ch.
327, Sec. 1. (SB 707) Effective January 1, 2026.)

Note: There are sequential gaps throughout the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government Code §§
54950-54963) primarily because of how the California Legislature updates and changes the Government
Code over time. When in question, visit the Ca Legislative website



54952.3.

(a) A legislative body that has convened a meeting and whose
membership constitutes a quorum of any other legislative body may
convene a meeting of that other legislative body, simultaneously or in
serial order, only if a clerk or a member of the convened legislative
body verbally announces, prior to convening any simultaneous or
serial order meeting of that subsequent legislative body, the amount of
compensation or stipend, if any, that each member will be entitled to
receive as a result of convening the simultaneous or serial meeting of
the subsequent legislative body and identifies that the compensation
or stipend shall be provided as a result of convening a meeting for
which each member is entitled to collect compensation or a stipend.
However, the clerk or member of the legislative body shall not be
required to announce the amount of compensation if the amount of
compensation is prescribed in statute and no additional compensation
has been authorized by a local agency.

(b) For purposes of this section, compensation and stipend shall not
include amounts reimbursed for actual and necessary expenses
incurred by a member in the performance of the member’s official
duties, including, but not limited to, reimbursement of expenses
relating to travel, meals, and lodging. (Added by Stats. 2011, Ch. 91, Sec. 1. (AB
23) Effective January 1, 2012.)

54952.6. As used in this chapter, “action taken” means a collective decision made by
a majority of the members of a legislative body, a collective commitment or
promise by a majority of the members of a legislative body to make a positive or a
negative decision, or an actual vote by a majority of the members of a legislative
body when sitting as a body or entity, upon a motion, proposal, resolution, order or
ordinance. (Added by Stats. 1961, Ch. 1671.)

54952.7. A local agency shall provide a copy of this chapter to any person elected or
appointed to serve as a member of a legislative body of the local agency. (Amended by
Stats. 2025, Ch. 327, Sec. 3. (SB 707) Effective January 1, 2026.)

54953.
(a)

(b)

All meetings of the legislative body of a local agency shall be open and
public, and all persons shall be permitted to attend any meeting of the
legislative body of a local agency, except as otherwise provided in this
chapter.

(1) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the legislative body of
a local agency may use teleconferencing for the benefit of the public
and the legislative body of a local agency in connection with any
meeting or proceeding authorized by law. The teleconferenced meeting
or proceeding shall comply with all otherwise applicable requirements
of this chapter and all otherwise applicable provisions of law relating to
a specific type of meeting or proceeding.

Note: There are sequential gaps throughout the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government Code §§
54950-54963) primarily because of how the California Legislature updates and changes the Government

Code over time. When in question, visit the Ca Legislative website



(2) Teleconferencing, as authorized by this section, may be used for all
purposes in connection with any meeting within the subject matter
jurisdiction of the legislative body. If the legislative body of a local
agency elects to use teleconferencing, the legislative body of a local
agency shall comply with all of the following:

(A) All votes taken during a teleconferenced meeting shall be by
rollcall.

(B) The teleconferenced meetings shall be conducted in a
manner that protects the statutory and constitutional rights of
the parties or the public appearing before the legislative body of
a local agency.

(C) The legislative body shall give notice of the meeting and
post agendas as otherwise required by this chapter.

(D) The legislative body shall allow members of the public to
access the meeting and the agenda shall provide an opportunity
for members of the public to address the legislative body
directly pursuant to Section 54954.3.

(3) If the legislative body of a local agency elects to use
teleconferencing, it shall post agendas at all teleconference locations.
Each teleconference location shall be identified in the notice and agenda
of the meeting or proceeding, and each teleconference location shall be
accessible to the public. During the teleconference, at least a quorum of
the members of the legislative body shall participate from locations
within the boundaries of the territory over which the local agency
exercises jurisdiction, except as expressly provided in this chapter.

(4) The teleconferencing requirements of this subdivision shall not apply
to remote participation described in subdivision (c).

(c) (1) Nothing in this chapter shall be construed to prohibit a member of a
legislative body with a disability from participating in any meeting of the
legislative body by remote participation as a reasonable accommodation
pursuant to any applicable law.

(2) A member of a legislative body participating in a meeting by remote
participation pursuant to this subdivision shall do both of the following:

(A) The member shall participate through both audio and visual
technology, except that any member with a disability, as defined in
Section 12102 of Title 42 of the United States Code, may participate

Note: There are sequential gaps throughout the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government Code §§
54950-54963) primarily because of how the California Legislature updates and changes the Government
Code over time. When in question, visit the Ca Legislative website



(d)

(e)

only through audio technology if a physical condition related to their
disability results in a need to participate off camera.

(B) The member shall disclose at the meeting before any action is
taken, whether any other individuals 18 years of age or older are
present in the room at the remote location with the member, and the
general nature of the member’s relationship with any of those
individuals.

(3) Remote participation under this subdivision shall be treated as in-person
attendance at the physical meeting location for all purposes, including any
requirement that a quorum of the legislative body participate from any
particular location. The provisions of subdivision (b) and Sections 54953.8 to
54953.8.7, inclusive, shall not apply to remote participation under this
subdivision.

(1) No legislative body shall take action by secret ballot, whether preliminary
or final.

(2) The legislative body of a local agency shall publicly report any action
taken and the vote or abstention on that action of each member present for
the action.

(3) (A) Prior to taking final action, the legislative body shall orally report a
summary of a recommendation for a final action on the salaries, salary
schedules, or compensation paid in the form of fringe benefits of either
of the following during the open meeting in which the final action is to
be taken:

(i) A local agency executive, as defined in subdivision (d) of
Section 3511.1.

(ii) A department head or other similar administrative officer of
the local agency.

(B) This paragraph shall not affect the public’s right under the
California Public Records Act (Division 10 (commencing with Section
7920.000) of Title 1) to inspect or copy records created or received in
the process of developing the recommendation.

For purposes of this section, both of the following definitions apply:

(1) “Disability” means a physical disability or a mental disability as those
terms are defined in Section 12926 and used in Section 12926.1, or a
disability as defined in Section 12102 of Title 42 of the United States Code.

Note: There are sequential gaps throughout the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government Code §§
54950-54963) primarily because of how the California Legislature updates and changes the Government
Code over time. When in question, visit the Ca Legislative website

10



(2) (A) "Teleconference” means a meeting of a legislative body, the
members of which are in different locations, connected by electronic means,
through either audio or video, or both.

(B) Notwithstanding subparagraph (A), “teleconference” does not
include one or more members watching or listening to a meeting via
webcasting or any other similar electronic medium that does not
permit members to interactively speak, discuss, or deliberate on
matters.

(3) "“Remote participation” means participation in a meeting by
teleconference at a location other than any physical meeting location designated
in the notice of the meeting. (Amended (as amended by Stats. 2023, Ch. 534, Sec. 2) by Stats. 2025,
Ch. 327, Sec. 4. (SB 707) Effective January 1, 2026.)

54953.1. The provisions of this chapter shall not be construed to prohibit the
members of the legislative body of a local agency from giving testimony in private
before a grand jury, either as individuals or as a body. (Added by Stats. 1979, Ch. 950.)

54953.2. All meetings of a legislative body of a local agency that are open and public
shall meet the protections and prohibitions contained in Section 202 of the
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec. 12132), and the federal
rules and regulations adopted in implementation thereof. (Added by Stats. 2002, Ch. 300, Sec.
5. Effective January 1, 2003.)

54953.3. A member of the public shall not be required, as a condition to attendance
at a meeting of a legislative body of a local agency, to register his or her name, to
provide other information, to complete a questionnaire, or otherwise to fulfill any
condition precedent to his or her attendance.

If an attendance list, register, questionnaire, or other similar document is posted at
or near the entrance to the room where the meeting is to be held, or is circulated to
the persons present during the meeting, it shall state clearly that the signing,
registering, or completion of the document is voluntary, and that all persons may
attend the meeting regardless of whether a person signs, registers, or completes
the document. (Amended by Stats. 1981, Ch. 968, Sec. 28.)

54953.4. (@) The Legislature finds and declares that public access, including
through translation of agendas as required by this section, is
necessary for an informed populace. The Legislature encourages local
agencies to adopt public access requirements that exceed the
requirements of this chapter by translating additional languages,
employing human translators, and conducting additional outreach.

Note: There are sequential gaps throughout the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government Code §§
54950-54963) primarily because of how the California Legislature updates and changes the Government
Code over time. When in question, visit the Ca Legislative website

11



(b) (1) In addition to any other applicable requirements of this
chapter, a meeting held by a eligible legislative body pursuant to this
chapter shall comply with both of the following requirements:

(A) (i) (1) (ia) All open and public meetings shall include an
opportunity for members of the public to attend via a two-way
telephonic service or a two-way audiovisual platform, except if
adequate telephonic or internet service is not operational at the
meeting location. If adequate telephonic or internet service is
operational at the meeting location during only a portion of the
meeting, the legislative body shall include an opportunity for members
of the public to attend via a two-way telephonic service or a two-way
audiovisual platform during that portion of the meeting.

(ib) (Ia) On or before July 1, 2026, an eligible legislative body shall
approve at a noticed public meeting in open session, not on the
consent calendar, a policy regarding disruption of telephonic or
internet service occurring during meetings subject to this sub-
subclause. The policy shall address the procedures for recessing and
reconvening a meeting in the event of disruption and the efforts that
the eligible legislative body shall make to attempt to restore the
service.

(Ib) If a disruption of telephonic or internet service that prevents
members of the public from attending or observing the meeting
via the two-way telephonic service or two-way audiovisual
platform occurs during the meeting, the eligible legislative body
shall recess the open session of the meeting for at least one hour
and make a good faith attempt to restore the service. The eligible
legislative body may meet in closed session during this period.
The eligible legislative body shall not reconvene the open session
of the meeting until at least one hour following the disruption, or
until telephonic or internet service is restored, whichever is
earlier.

(Ic) Upon reconvening the open session, if telephonic or internet
service has not been restored, the eligible legislative body shall
adopt a finding by rollcall vote that good faith efforts to restore
the telephonic or internet service have been made in accordance
with the policy adopted pursuant to sub-sub-subclause (Ia) and
that the public interest in continuing the meeting outweighs the
public interest in remote public access.

Note: There are sequential gaps throughout the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government Code §§
54950-54963) primarily because of how the California Legislature updates and changes the Government
Code over time. When in question, visit the Ca Legislative website

12



(II) Subclause (I) does not apply to a meeting that is held to do any of
the following:

(ia) Attend a judicial or administrative proceeding to which the local
agency is a party.

(ib) Inspect real or personal property provided that the topic of the
meeting is limited to items directly related to the real or personal
property.

(ic) Meet with elected or appointed officials of the United States or
the State of California, solely to discuss a legislative or regulatory
issue affecting the local agency and over which the federal or state
officials have jurisdiction.

(id) Meet in or nearby a facility owned by the agency, provided that
the topic of the meeting is limited to items directly related to the
facility.

(ie) Meet in an emergency situation pursuant to Section 54956.5.

(ii) If an eligible legislative body elects to provide a two-way audiovisual
platform, the eligible legislative body shall publicly post and provide a call-
in option, and activate any automatic captioning function during the
meeting if an automatic captioning function is included with the two-way
audiovisual platform. If an eligible legislative body does not elect to
provide a two-way audiovisual platform, the eligible legislative body shall
provide a two-way telephonic service for the public to participate in the
meeting, pursuant to subclause (I).

(B) (i) All open and public meetings for which attendance via a two-way
telephonic service or a two-way audiovisual platform is provided in accordance
with paragraph (1) shall provide the public with an opportunity to provide
public comment in accordance with Section 54954.3 via the two-way
telephonic or two-way audiovisual platform, and ensure the opportunity for
the members of the public participating via a two-way telephonic or two-way
audiovisual platform to provide public comment with the same time allotment
as a person attending a meeting in person.

(2) (A) An eligible legislative body shall reasonably assist members of the public
who wish to translate a public meeting into any language or wish to receive
interpretation provided by another member of the public, so long as the
interpretation is not disrupting to the meeting, as defined in Section 54957.95.
The eligible legislative body shall publicize instructions on how to request
assistance under this subdivision. Assistance may include any of the following, as
determined by the eligible legislative body:

Note: There are sequential gaps throughout the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government Code §§

54950-54963) primarily because of how the California Legislature updates and changes the Government
Code over time. When in question, visit the Ca Legislative website

13



(i) Arranging space for one or more interpreters at the meeting location.
(ii) Allowing extra time during the meeting for interpretation to occur.

(iii) Ensuring participants may utilize their personal equipment or
reasonably access facilities for participants to access commercially
available interpretation services.

(B) This section does not require an eligible legislative body to provide
interpretation of any public meeting, however, an eligible legislative body may
elect to provide interpretation of any public meeting.

(C) The eligible legislative body is not responsible for the content or accuracy
of any interpretation facilitated, assisted with, or provided under this
subdivision. An action shall not be commenced or maintained against the
eligible legislative body arising from the content or accuracy of any
interpretation facilitated, assisted with, or provided under this subdivision.

(3) An eligible legislative body shall take the following actions to encourage
residents, including those in underrepresented communities and non-English-
speaking communities, to participate in public meetings:

(A) Have in place a system for electronically accepting and fulfilling requests
for meeting agendas and documents pursuant to Section 54954.1 through
email or through an integrated agenda management platform. Information
about how to make a request using this system shall be accessible through a
prominent direct link posted on the primary internet website home page of the
eligible legislative body.

(B) (i) Create and maintain an accessible internet webpage dedicated to public
meetings that includes, or provides a link to, all of the following information:

(I) A general explanation of the public meeting process for the eligible
legislative body.

(II) An explanation of the procedures for a member of the public to
provide in-person or remote oral public comment during a public
meeting or to submit written public comment.

(IIT) A calendar of all public meeting dates with calendar listings that
include the date, time, and location of each public meeting.

(IV) The agenda posted online pursuant to paragraph (2) of subdivision
(@) of Section 54954.2.

Note: There are sequential gaps throughout the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government Code §§
54950-54963) primarily because of how the California Legislature updates and changes the Government
Code over time. When in question, visit the Ca Legislative website

14



(ii) The eligible legislative body shall include a link to the webpage required
by subparagraph (A) on the home page of the eligible legislative body’s
internet website.

(C) (i) Make reasonable efforts, as determined by the legislative body, to
invite groups that do not traditionally participate in public meetings to attend
those meetings, which may include, but are not limited to, all the following:

(I) Media organizations that provide news coverage in the jurisdiction of
the eligible legislative body, including media organizations that serve
non-English-speaking communities.

(II) Good government, civil rights, civic engagement, neighborhood,
and community group organizations, or similar organizations that are
active in the jurisdiction of the eligible legislative body, including
organizations active in non-English-speaking communities.

(ii) Legislative bodies shall have broad discretion in the choice of
reasonable efforts they make under this subparagraph. No action shall be
commenced or maintained against an eligible legislative body arising from
failing to provide public meeting information to any specific group pursuant
to this subparagraph.

(c) (1) (A) The agenda for each meeting of an eligible legislative body shall be
translated into all applicable languages, and each translation shall be posted in
accordance with Section 54954.2. Each translation shall include instructions in the
applicable language describing how to join the meeting by the telephonic or
internet-based service option, including any requirements for registration for public
comment.

(B) The accessible internet webpage provided under subparagraph (B) of
paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) shall be translated into all applicable
languages, and each translation shall be accessible through a prominent
direct link posted on the primary internet website home page of the eligible
legislative body.

(2) A translation made using a digital translation service shall satisfy the
requirements of paragraph (1).

(3) The eligible legislative body shall make available a physical location that is
freely accessible to the public in reasonable proximity to the physical location in
which the agenda and translations are posted as described in paragraph (1), and
shall allow members of the public to post additional translations of the agenda in
that location.

Note: There are sequential gaps throughout the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government Code §§
54950-54963) primarily because of how the California Legislature updates and changes the Government
Code over time. When in question, visit the Ca Legislative website

15



(4) The eligible legislative body is not responsible for the content or accuracy of
any translation provided pursuant to this subdivision. No action shall be
commenced or maintained against an eligible legislative body arising from the
content, accuracy, posting, or removal of any translation provided by the eligible
legislative body or posted by any person pursuant to this subdivision.

(5) For the purposes of this section, the agenda does not include the entire
agenda packet.

(d) This section shall not be construed to affect or supersede any other applicable
civil rights, nondiscrimination, or public access laws.

(e) For purposes of this section, all of the following definitions apply:
(1) (A) “Applicable languages” means languages, according to data from the most
recent American Community Survey, spoken jointly by 20 percent or more of the
applicable population, provided that 20 percent or more of the population that
speaks that language in that city or county speaks English less than “very well.”

(B) For the purposes of subparagraph (A), the applicable population shall be
determined as follows:

(i) For an eligible legislative body that is a city council or county board of
supervisors, the applicable population shall be the population of the city or
county.

(if) For an eligible legislative body of a special district, the applicable
population shall be either of the following, at the discretion of the board of
directors of the special district:

(I) The population of the county with the greatest population within the
boundaries of the special district.

(IT) The population of the service area of the special district, if the
special district has the data to determine what languages spoken by the
population within its service area meet the requirements of paragraph

(A).

(C) If more than three languages meet the criteria set forth in subparagraph
(A), “applicable languages” shall mean the three languages described in
subparagraph (A) that are spoken by the largest percentage of the population.

(D) An eligible legislative body may elect to determine the applicable
languages based upon a source other than the most recent American
Community Survey if it makes a finding, based upon substantial evidence,
that the other source provides equally or more reliable data for the territory
over which the eligible legislative body exercises jurisdiction.

Note: There are sequential gaps throughout the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government Code §§
54950-54963) primarily because of how the California Legislature updates and changes the Government
Code over time. When in question, visit the Ca Legislative website

16



(2) “Eligible legislative body” means any of the following:

(A) A city council of a city with a population of 30,000 or more.

(B) A county board of supervisors of a county, or city and county, with a
population of 30,000 or more.

(C) A city council of a city located in a county with a population of 600,000 or
more.

(D) The board of directors of a special district that has an internet website and
meets any of the following conditions:

(i) The boundaries of the special district include the entirety of a county
with a population of 600,000 or more, and the special district has over 200
full-time equivalent employees.

(ii) The special district has over 1,000 full-time equivalent employees.

(iii) The special district has annual revenues, based on the most recent
Financial Transaction Report data published by the California State
Controller, that exceed four hundred million dollars ($400,000,000),
adjusted annually for inflation commencing January 1, 2027, as measured
by the percentage change in the California Consumer Price Index from
January 1 of the prior year to January 1 of the current year, and the
special district employs over 200 full-time equivalent employees.

(3) "Two-way audiovisual platform” means an online platform that provides
participants with the ability to participate in a meeting via both an interactive

video

conference and a two-way telephonic service.

(4) "Two-way telephonic service” means a telephone service that does not
require internet access and allows participants to dial a telephone number to

listen
(f) This

(g) This

and verbally participate.
section shall become operative on July 1, 2026.

section shall remain in effect only until January 1, 2030, and as of that

date is repealed. (Added by Stats. 2025, Ch. 327, Sec. 5. (SB 707) Effective January 1, 2026. Operative July 1,
2026, by its own provisions. Repealed as of January 1, 2030, by its own provisions.)

54953.5.

(a) Any person attending an open and public meeting of a legislative
body of a local agency shall have the right to record the proceedings in
the absence of a reasonable finding by the legislative body of the local
agency that the recording cannot continue without noise, illumination,
or obstruction of view that constitutes, or would constitute, a

persistent disruption of the proceedings.
Note: There are sequential gaps throughout the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government Code §§
54950-54963) primarily because of how the California Legislature updates and changes the Government
Code over time. When in question, visit the Ca Legislative website

17



(b) Any recording of an open and public meeting made for whatever
purpose by or at the direction of the local agency shall be subject to
inspection pursuant to the California Public Records Act (Division 10
(commencing with Section 7920.000) of Title 1), but, notwithstanding
Section 34090, may be erased or destroyed 30 days after the
recording. Any inspection of an audio or video recording shall be
provided without charge on equipment made available by the local
agency. (Amended by Stats. 2025, Ch. 327, Sec. 6. (SB 707) Effective January 1, 2026.)

54953.6. No legislative body of a local agency shall prohibit or otherwise restrict the
broadcast of its open and public meetings in the absence of a reasonable finding
that the broadcast cannot be accomplished without noise, illumination, or

obstruction of view that would constitute a persistent disruption of the proceedings.
(Amended by Stats. 1994, Ch. 32, Sec. 6. Effective March 30, 1994. Operative April 1, 1994, by Sec. 23 of Ch. 32.)

54953.7. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, legislative bodies of local
agencies may impose requirements upon themselves which allow greater access to
their meetings than prescribed by the minimal standards set forth in this chapter.
In addition thereto, an elected legislative body of a local agency may impose those
requirements on appointed legislative bodies of the local agency. (Amended by Stats.
2025, Ch. 327, Sec. 7. (SB 707) Effective January 1, 2026.)

54953.8.

(@) The legislative body of a local agency may use teleconferencing as
authorized by subdivision (b) of Section 54953 without complying with
the requirements of paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of Section 54953
in any of the circumstances described in Sections 54953.8.1 to
54953.8.7, inclusive.

(b) A legislative body that holds a teleconference meeting pursuant to
this section shall, in addition to any other applicable requirements of
this chapter, comply with all of the following:

(1) The legislative body shall provide at least one of the following
as a means by which the public may remotely hear and visually
observe the meeting, and remotely address the legislative body:

(A) A two-way audiovisual platform.

(B) A two-way telephonic service and a live webcasting of the
meeting.

(2) In each instance in which notice of the time of the
teleconference meeting held pursuant to this section is otherwise
given or the agenda for the meeting is otherwise posted, the

Note: There are sequential gaps throughout the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government Code §§
54950-54963) primarily because of how the California Legislature updates and changes the Government

Code over time. When in question, visit the Ca Legislative website

18



legislative body shall also give notice of the means by which
members of the public may access the meeting and offer public
comment. The agenda shall identify and include an opportunity for
all persons to attend via a call-in option or an internet-based
service option.

(3) In the event of a disruption that prevents the legislative body
from broadcasting the meeting to members of the public using the
call-in option or internet-based service option, or in the event of a
disruption within the local agency’s control that prevents members
of the public from offering public comments using the call-in option
or internet-based service option, the legislative body shall take no
further action on items appearing on the meeting agenda until
public access to the meeting via the call-in option or internet-based
service option is restored. Actions taken on agenda items during a
disruption that prevents the legislative body from broadcasting the
meeting may be challenged pursuant to Section 54960.1.

(4) The legislative body shall not require public comments to be
submitted in advance of the meeting and must provide an
opportunity for the public to address the legislative body and offer
comment in real time.

(5) Notwithstanding Section 54953.3, an individual desiring to
provide public comment through the use of an internet website, or
other online platform, not under the control of the local legislative
body, that requires registration to log in to a teleconference may be
required to register as required by the third-party internet website
or online platform to participate.

(6)(A) A legislative body that provides a timed public comment
period for each agenda item shall not close the public comment
period for the agenda item, or the opportunity to register,
pursuant to paragraph (5), to provide public comment until that
timed public comment period has elapsed.

(B) A legislative body that does not provide a timed public
comment period, but takes public comment separately on each
agenda item, shall allow a reasonable amount of time per
agenda item to allow public members the opportunity to provide
public comment, including time for members of the public to
register pursuant to paragraph (5), or otherwise be recognized
for the purpose of providing public comment.

Note: There are sequential gaps throughout the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government Code §§
54950-54963) primarily because of how the California Legislature updates and changes the Government
Code over time. When in question, visit the Ca Legislative website

19



(C) A legislative body that provides a timed general public
comment period that does not correspond to a specific agenda
item shall not close the public comment period or the
opportunity to register, pursuant to paragraph (5), until the
timed general public comment period has elapsed.

(7) Any member of the legislative body who participates in a
teleconference meeting from a remote location pursuant to this
section and the specific provision of law that the member relied
upon to permit their participation by teleconferencing shall be listed
in the minutes of the meeting.

(8) The legislative body shall have and implement a procedure for
receiving and swiftly resolving requests for reasonable
accommodation for individuals with disabilities, consistent with the
federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec.
12132), and resolving any doubt in favor of accessibility. In each
instance in which notice of the time of the meeting is otherwise
given or the agenda for the meeting is otherwise posted, the
legislative body shall also give notice of the procedure for receiving
and resolving requests for accommodation.

(9) The legislative body shall conduct meetings subject to this
chapter consistent with applicable civil rights and nondiscrimination
laws.

(c) A local agency shall identify and make available to
legislative bodies a list of one or more meeting locations
that may be available for use by the legislative bodies to
conduct their meetings.

(d) (1) Nothing in this section shall prohibit a legislative body
from providing the public with additional teleconference
locations.

(2) Nothing in this section shall prohibit a legislative body
from providing the public with additional physical
locations in which the public may observe and address
the legislative body by electronic means.

(e) A member of a legislative body who participates in a
teleconference meeting from a remote location pursuant
to this section shall publicly disclose at the meeting
before any action is taken whether any other individuals
18 years of age or older are present in the room at the

Note: There are sequential gaps throughout the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government Code §§
54950-54963) primarily because of how the California Legislature updates and changes the Government
Code over time. When in question, visit the Ca Legislative website

20



remote location with the member, and the general nature
of the member’s relationship with those individuals.

() The teleconferencing provisions described in Section
54953 and Sections 54953.8.1 to 54953.8.7, inclusive,
are cumulative. A legislative body may elect to use any
teleconferencing provisions that are applicable to a
meeting, regardless of whether any other
teleconferencing provisions would also be applicable to
that meeting.

(9) For purposes of this section, the following definitions
apply:

(1) "Remote location” means a location from which a
member of a legislative body participates in a meeting
pursuant to paragraph (7) of subdivision (b), other than
any physical meeting location designated in the notice of
the meeting. Remote locations need not be accessible to
the public.

(2) “Teleconference” means a meeting of a legislative
body, the members of which are in different locations,
connected by electronic means, through either audio or
video, or both.

(3) "Two-way audiovisual platform” means an online
platform that provides participants with the ability to
participate in a meeting via both an interactive video
conference and a two-way telephonic service. A two-way
audiovisual platform may be structured to disable the use
of video for the public participants.

(4) “"Two-way telephonic service” means a telephone
service that does not require internet access and allows
participants to dial a telephone number to listen and
verbally participate.

(5) "Webcasting” means a streaming video broadcast
online or on television, using streaming media technology
to distribute a single content source to many

simultaneous listeners and viewers. (Added by Stats. 2025, Ch.
327, Sec. 8. (SB 707) Effective January 1, 2026.)

Note: There are sequential gaps throughout the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government Code §§
54950-54963) primarily because of how the California Legislature updates and changes the Government
Code over time. When in question, visit the Ca Legislative website

21



54953.8.1.

54953.8.2.

(@) A health authority may conduct a teleconference meeting pursuant
to Section 54953.8, provided that it complies with the requirements of
that section.

(b) Nothing in this section or Section 54953.8 shall be construed as
discouraging health authority members from regularly meeting at a
common physical site within the jurisdiction of the authority or from
using teleconference locations within or near the jurisdiction of the

authority.

(c) For purposes of this section, a health authority means any entity
created pursuant to Sections 14018.7, 14087.31, 14087.35, 14087.36,
14087.38, and 14087.9605 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, any
joint powers authority created pursuant to Article 1 (commencing with
Section 6500) of Chapter 5 of Division 7 for the purpose of contracting
pursuant to Section 14087.3 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, and
any advisory committee to a county-sponsored health plan licensed
pursuant to Chapter 2.2 (commencing with Section 1340) of Division 2
of the Health and Safety Code if the advisory committee has 12 or
more members. (Added by Stats. 2025, Ch. 327, Sec. 9. (SB 707) Effective January 1,
2026.)

(@) A legislative body of a local agency may conduct a teleconference
meeting pursuant to Section 54953.8 during a proclaimed state of
emergency or local emergency, provided that it complies with the
requirements of that section and the teleconferencing is used in either
of the following circumstances:

(1) For the purpose of determining, by majority vote, whether
as a result of the emergency, meeting in person would present
imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees.

(2) After a determination described in paragraph (1) is made
that, as a result of the emergency, meeting in person would
present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees.

(b) If the state of emergency or local emergency remains active, in
order to continue to teleconference pursuant to this section, the
legislative body shall, no later than 45 days after teleconferencing for
the first time pursuant to this section, and every 45 days thereafter,
make the following findings by majority vote:

(1) The legislative body has reconsidered the circumstances of
the state of emergency or local emergency.

Note: There are sequential gaps throughout the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government Code §§

54950-54963) primarily because of how the California Legislature updates and changes the Government

Code over time. When in question, visit the Ca Legislative website

22



54953.8.3.

(2) The state of emergency or local emergency continues to
directly impact the ability of the members to meet safely in
person.

(c) This section shall not be construed to require the legislative body
to provide a physical location from which the public may attend or
comment.

(d) Notwithstanding paragraph (1) of subdivision (b) of Section
54953.8, a legislative body conducting a teleconference meeting
pursuant to this section may elect to use a two-way telephonic service
without a live webcasting of the meeting.

(e) For purposes of this section, the following definitions apply:

(1) “Local emergency” means a condition of extreme peril to
persons or property proclaimed by the governing body of the
local agency affected, in accordance with Section 8630 of the
California Emergency Services Act (Chapter 7 (commencing with
Section 8550) of Division 1 of Title 2), as defined in Section
8680.9, or a local health emergency declared pursuant to
Section 101080 of the Health and Safety Code. Local
emergency, as used in this section, refers only to local
emergencies in the boundaries of the territory over which the
local agency exercises jurisdiction.

(2) “State of emergency” means state of emergency proclaimed
pursuant to Section 8625 of the California Emergency Services
Act (Chapter 7 (commencing with Section 8550) of Division 1 of
Title 2). (Added by Stats. 2025, Ch. 327, Sec. 10. (SB 707) Effective January 1,
2026.)

(@) A legislative body of a local agency may conduct a teleconference
meeting pursuant to Section 54953.8 if, during the teleconference
meeting, at least a quorum of the members of the legislative body
participates in person from a singular physical location clearly
identified on the agenda, which location shall be open to the public and
situated within the boundaries of the territory over which the local
agency exercises jurisdiction, provided that the legislative body
complies with the requirements of Section 54953.8 and all of the
following additional requirements:

(1) A member of the legislative body notifies the legislative body
at the earliest opportunity possible, including at the start of a
regular meeting, of their need to participate remotely for just

Note: There are sequential gaps throughout the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government Code §§
54950-54963) primarily because of how the California Legislature updates and changes the Government

Code over time. When in question, visit the Ca Legislative website

23



cause, including a general description of the circumstances
relating to their need to appear remotely at the given meeting.

(2) The member shall participate through both audio and visual
technology.

(3)(A) The provisions of this subdivision shall not serve as a
means for any member of a legislative body to participate in
meetings of the legislative body solely by teleconference from a
remote location for just cause for more than the following
number of meetings, as applicable:

(i) Two meetings per year, if the legislative body regularly
meets once per month or less.

(ii) Five meetings per year, if the legislative body
regularly meets twice per month.

(iii) Seven meetings per year, if the legislative body
regularly meets three or more times per month.

(B) For the purpose of counting meetings attended by
teleconference under this paragraph, a "meeting” shall be
defined as any number of meetings of the legislative body of a
local agency that begin on the same calendar day.

(b) The minutes for the meeting shall identify the specific provision in
subdivision.

(c) that each member relied upon to participate remotely. This subdivision
shall not be construed to require the member to disclose any medical
diagnosis or disability, or any personal medical information that is otherwise
exempt under existing law, including, but not limited to, the Confidentiality of
Medical Information Act (Chapter 1 (commencing with Section 56) of Part 2.6
of Division 1 of the Civil Code).

(c) For purposes of this section, “just cause” means any of the following:
(1) Childcare or caregiving need of a child, parent, grandparent, grandchild,
sibling, spouse, or domestic partner that requires them to participate
remotely. “Child,” “parent,” “grandparent,” “grandchild,” and “sibling” have
the same meaning as those terms do in Section 12945.2.

(2) A contagious illness that prevents a member from attending in person.

Note: There are sequential gaps throughout the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government Code §§
54950-54963) primarily because of how the California Legislature updates and changes the Government
Code over time. When in question, visit the Ca Legislative website

24



(3) A need related to a physical or mental condition that is not subject to
subdivision (c) of Section 54953.

(4) Travel while on official business of the legislative body or another state or
local agency.

(5) An immunocompromised child, parent, grandparent, grandchild, sibling,
spouse, or domestic partner of the member that requires the member to
participate remotely.

(6) A physical or family medical emergency that prevents a member from
attending in person.

(7) Military service obligations that result in a member being unable to attend in
person because they are serving under official written orders for active duty, drill,
annual training, or any other duty required as a member of the California
National Guard or a United States Military Reserve organization that requires the
member to be at least 50 miles outside the boundaries of the local agency.

(d) This section shall remain in effect only until January 1, 2030, and as of that
date is repealed. (Added by Stats. 2025, Ch. 327, Sec. 11. (SB 707) Effective January 1, 2026. Repealed as of
January 1, 2030, by its own provisions.)

54953.8.4.

(@) An eligible neighborhood council may conduct a teleconference meeting
pursuant to Section 54953.8, provided that it complies with the requirements of
that section and all of the following have occurred:

(1)

(A) The city council for a city described in paragraph (2) of subdivision
(b) considers whether to adopt a resolution to authorize eligible
neighborhood councils to use teleconferencing as described in this
section at an open and regular meeting.

(B) If the city council adopts a resolution described in subparagraph
(A), an eligible neighborhood council may elect to use teleconferencing
pursuant to this section if a majority of the eligible neighborhood
council votes to do so. The eligible neighborhood council shall notify
the city council if it elects to use teleconferencing pursuant to this
section and its justification for doing so.

(C) Upon receiving notification from an eligible neighborhood
resolution to prohibit the eligible neighborhood council from using
teleconferencing pursuant to this section.

Note: There are sequential gaps throughout the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government Code §§
54950-54963) primarily because of how the California Legislature updates and changes the Government

Code over time. When in question, visit the Ca Legislative website

25



(2) After completing the requirements of subparagraph (A) of paragraph
(1), an eligible neighborhood council that holds a meeting pursuant to
this subdivision shall do all of the following:

(A) At least a quorum of the members of the eligible neighborhood
council shall participate from locations within the boundaries of the city
in which the eligible neighborhood council is established.

(B) At least once per year, at least a quorum of the members of the
eligible neighborhood council shall participate in person from a singular
physical location that is open to the public and within the boundaries
of the eligible neighborhood council.

(3) If the meeting is during regular business hours of the offices of the city
council member that represents the area that includes the eligible
neighborhood council, the eligible neighborhood council shall provide a
publicly accessible physical location from which the public may attend
or comment, which shall be the offices of the city council member who
represents the area where the eligible neighborhood council is located,
unless the eligible neighborhood council identifies an alternative
location.

(4) If the meeting is outside regular business hours, the eligible
neighborhood council shall make reasonable efforts to accommodate
any member of the public that requests an accommodation to
participate in the meeting.

(b) For purposes of this section, the following definitions apply:

(1) "Accommodation” means providing a publicly accessible physical
location for the member of the public to participate from, providing
access to technology necessary to participate in the meeting, or
identifying locations or resources available that could provide the
member of the public with an opportunity to participate in the
meeting.

(2) “Eligible neighborhood council” means a neighborhood council that
is an advisory body with the purpose to promote more citizen
participation in government and make government more responsive to
local needs that is established pursuant to the charter of a city with a
population of more than 3,000,000 people that is subject to this
chapter.

(¢) This section shall remain in effect only until January 1, 2030, and as of that date
is repealed. (Added by Stats. 2025, Ch. 327, Sec. 12. (SB 707) Effective January 1, 2026. Repealed as of
January 1, 2030, by its own provisions.)

Note: There are sequential gaps throughout the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government Code §§

54950-54963) primarily because of how the California Legislature updates and changes the Government
Code over time. When in question, visit the Ca Legislative website

26



54953.8.5.

(@) An eligible community college student organization may conduct a
teleconference meeting pursuant to Section 54953.8, provided that it complies with
the requirements of that section and all of the following additional requirements:

(1) An eligible community college student organization may only use
teleconferencing as described in Section 54953.8 after all the following have
occurred:

(A) The board of trustees for a community college district considers
whether to adopt a resolution to authorize eligible community college
student organizations to use teleconferencing as described in this
section at an open and regular meeting.

(B) If the board of trustees for a community college district adopts a
resolution described in subparagraph (A), an eligible community
college student organization may elect to use teleconferencing
pursuant to this section if a majority of the eligible community college
student organization votes to do so. The eligible community college
student organization shall notify the board of trustees if it elects to use
teleconferencing pursuant to this section and its justification for doing
SO.

(C) Upon receiving notification from an eligible community college
student organization as described in subparagraph (B), the board of
trustees may adopt a resolution to prohibit the eligible community
college student organization from using teleconferencing pursuant to
this section.

(D) (i) Except as specified in clause (ii), at least a quorum of the
members of the eligible community college student organization shall
participate from a singular physical location that is accessible to the
public and is within the community college district in which the eligible
community college student organization is established.

(ii) The requirements described in clause (i) shall not apply to
the California Online Community College.

(iii) Notwithstanding the requirements of clause (i), a person
may count toward the establishment of a quorum pursuant to
clause (i) regardless of whether the person is participating at
the in-person location of the meeting or remotely if the person
meets any of the following criteria:

(I) The person is under 18 years of age.
Note: There are sequential gaps throughout the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government Code §§

54950-54963) primarily because of how the California Legislature updates and changes the Government
Code over time. When in question, visit the Ca Legislative website

27



(II) The person is incarcerated.

(IIT) The person is unable to disclose the location that they are
participating from because of either of the following
circumstances:

(ia) The person has been issued a protective court order,
including, but not limited to, a domestic violence
restraining order.

(ib) The person is participating in a program that has to
remain confidential, including, but not limited to, an
independent living program.

(IV) The person provides childcare or caregiving to a child,
parent, grandparent, grandchild, sibling, spouse, or domestic
partner that requires them to participate remotely. For purposes
of this subclause, “child,” “parent,” “grandparent,” “grandchild,”
and “sibling” have the same meaning as those terms are defined
in Section 12945.2.

(2) An eligible community college student organization that holds a meeting
by teleconference as described in Section 54953.8 shall do the following, as

applicable:
(A)

(i) Except as specified in subparagraph (B), if the meeting is
during regular business hours of the offices of the board of
trustees of the community college district, the eligible
community college student organization shall provide a publicly
accessible physical location from which the public may attend or
comment, which shall be the offices of the board of trustees of
the community college district, unless the eligible community
college student organization identifies an alternative location.

(ii) Except as specified in subparagraph (B), if the meeting is
outside regular business hours, the eligible community college
student organization shall make reasonable efforts to
accommodate any member of the public that requests an
accommodation to participate in the meeting. For the purposes
of this subparagraph, “accommodation” means providing a
publicly accessible physical location for the member of the public
to participate from, providing access to technology necessary to
participate in the meeting, or identifying locations or resources
available that could provide the member of the public with an
opportunity to participate in the meeting.

Note: There are sequential gaps throughout the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government Code §§
54950-54963) primarily because of how the California Legislature updates and changes the Government

Code over time. When in question, visit the Ca Legislative website

28



(B) The requirements described in subparagraph (A) shall not apply to
the California Online Community College.

(b) For purposes of this section, “eligible community college student organization”
means a student body association organized pursuant to Section 76060 of the
Education Code, or any other student-run community college organization that is
required to comply with the meeting requirements of this chapter, that is in any
community college recognized within the California Community Colleges system and
includes the Student Senate for California Community Colleges.

(c) This section shall remain in effect only until January 1, 2030, and as of that date

is repealed. (Added by Stats. 2025, Ch. 327, Sec. 13. (SB 707) Effective January 1, 2026. Repealed as of
January 1, 2030, by its own provisions.)

54953.8.6.

(@) An eligible subsidiary body may conduct a teleconference meeting pursuant to
Section 54953.8, provided that it complies with the requirements of that section
and all of the following additional requirements:

(1) The eligible subsidiary body shall designate one physical meeting location
within the boundaries of the legislative body that created the eligible subsidiary
body where members of the subsidiary body who are not participating remotely
shall be present and members of the public may physically attend, observe, hear,
and participate in the meeting. At least one staff member of the eligible
subsidiary body or the legislative body that created the eligible subsidiary body
shall be present at the physical meeting location during the meeting. The eligible
subsidiary body shall post the agenda at the physical meeting location, but need
not post the agenda at a remote location.

(2)(A) A member of the eligible subsidiary body shall visibly appear on camera
during the open portion of a meeting that is publicly accessible via the internet
or other online platform, except if the member has a physical or mental
condition not subject to subdivision (c) of Section 54953 that results in a need
to participate off camera.

(B) The visual appearance of a member of the eligible subsidiary body on
camera may cease only when the appearance would be technologically
infeasible, including, but not limited to, when the member experiences a lack
of reliable broadband or internet connectivity that would be remedied by
joining without video.

(C) If a member of the eligible subsidiary body does not appear on camera
due to challenges with internet connectivity, the member shall announce the
reason for their nonappearance prior to turning off their camera.

Note: There are sequential gaps throughout the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government Code §§
54950-54963) primarily because of how the California Legislature updates and changes the Government
Code over time. When in question, visit the Ca Legislative website

29



(3) An elected official serving as a member of an eligible subsidiary body in their
official capacity shall not participate in a meeting of the eligible subsidiary body
by teleconferencing pursuant to this section unless the use of teleconferencing
complies with the requirements of paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of Section
54953.

(4) (A) In order to use teleconferencing pursuant to this section, the legislative
body that established the eligible subsidiary body by charter, ordinance,
resolution, or other formal action shall make the following findings by majority
vote before the eligible subsidiary body uses teleconferencing pursuant to this
section for the first time, and every six months thereafter:

(i) The legislative body has considered the circumstances of the eligible
subsidiary body.

(ii) Teleconference meetings of the eligible subsidiary body would enhance
public access to meetings of the eligible subsidiary body, and the public
has been made aware of the type of remote participation, including audio-
visual or telephonic, that will be made available at a regularly scheduled
meeting and has been provided the opportunity to comment at an in-
person meeting of the legislative body authorizing the subsidiary body to
meet entirely remotely.

(iii) Teleconference meetings of the eligible subsidiary body would promote
the attraction, retention, and diversity of eligible subsidiary body
members.

(B) (i) An eligible subsidiary body authorized to use teleconferencing pursuant
to this section may request to present any recommendations it develops to
the legislative body that created it.

(ii) Upon receiving a request described in clause (i), the legislative body
that created the subsidiary body shall hold a discussion at a regular
meeting held within 60 days after the legislative body receives the request,
or if the legislative body does not have another regular meeting scheduled
within 60 days after the legislative body receives the request, at the next
regular meeting after the request is received.

(iii) The discussion required by clause (ii) shall not be placed on a consent
calendar, but may be combined with the legislative body’s subsequent
consideration of the findings described in subparagraph (A) for the
following 12 months.

(iv) The legislative body shall not take any action on any recommendations
included in the report of a subsidiary body until the next regular meeting of
the legislative body following the discussion described in clause (ii).

Note: There are sequential gaps throughout the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government Code §§

54950-54963) primarily because of how the California Legislature updates and changes the Government
Code over time. When in question, visit the Ca Legislative website

30



(C) After the legislative body makes the findings described in subparagraph
(A), the eligible subsidiary body shall approve the use of teleconferencing by
majority vote before using teleconference pursuant to this section.

(D) The legislative body that created the eligible subsidiary body may elect to
prohibit the eligible subsidiary body from using teleconferencing pursuant to
this section at any time.

(b) (1) For purposes of this section, “eligible subsidiary body” means a legislative
body that meets all of the following:

(A) Is described in subdivision (b) of Section 54952.
(B) Serves exclusively in an advisory capacity.

(C) Is not authorized to take final action on legislation, regulations, contracts,
licenses, permits, or any other entitlements, grants, or allocations of funds.

(D) Does not have primary subject matter jurisdiction, as defined by the
charter, an ordinance, a resolution, or any formal action of the legislative body
that created the subsidiary body, that focuses on elections, budgets, police
oversight, privacy, removing from, or restricting access to, materials available
in public libraries, or taxes or related spending proposals.

(2) An eligible subsidiary body may include members who are elected officials,
members who are not elected officials, or any combination thereof.

(c) This section shall remain in effect only until January 1, 2030, and as of that date

is repealed.
(Added by Stats. 2025, Ch. 327, Sec. 14. (SB 707) Effective January 1, 2026. Repealed as of January 1, 2030, by its
own provisions.)

54953.8.7.

(@) An eligible multijurisdictional body may conduct a teleconference meeting
pursuant to Section 54953.8, provided that it complies with the requirements of
that section and all of the following additional requirements:

(1) The eligible multijurisdictional body has adopted a resolution that authorizes
the eligible multijurisdictional body to use teleconferencing pursuant to this
section at a regular meeting in open session.

(2) At least a quorum of the members of the eligible multijurisdictional body shall
participate from one or more physical locations that are open to the public and
within the boundaries of the territory over which the local agency exercises
jurisdiction.

Note: There are sequential gaps throughout the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government Code §§
54950-54963) primarily because of how the California Legislature updates and changes the Government
Code over time. When in question, visit the Ca Legislative website

31



(3) A member of the eligible multijurisdictional body who receives compensation
for their service on the eligible multijurisdictional body shall participate from a
physical location that is open to the public. For purposes of this paragraph,
“compensation” does not include reimbursement for actual and necessary
expenses.

(4) A member of the eligible multijurisdictional body may participate from a
remote location provided that:

(A) The eligible multijurisdictional body identifies each member of the eligible
multijurisdictional body who plans to participate remotely in the agenda.

(B) The member shall participate through both audio and visual technology.

(5) A member of the eligible multijurisdictional body shall not participate in a
meeting remotely pursuant to this section, unless the location from which the
member participates is more than 20 miles each way from any physical location
of the meeting described in paragraph (2).

(6) The provisions of this section shall not serve as a means for any member of a
legislative body to participate in meetings of the legislative body solely by
teleconference from a remote location for more than the following number of
meetings, as applicable:

(A) Two meetings per year, if the legislative body regularly meets once per
month or less.

(B) Five meetings per year, if the legislative body regularly meets twice per
month.

(C) Seven meetings per year, if the legislative body regularly meets three or
more times per month.

(D) For the purpose of counting meetings attended by teleconference under
this paragraph, a "meeting” shall be defined as any number of meetings of the
legislative body of a local agency that begin on the same calendar day.

(b) For the purposes of this section, both of the following definitions apply:
(1) “Eligible multijurisdictional body” means a multijurisdictional board,
commission, or advisory body of a multijurisdictional, cross-county agency,
the membership of which board, commission, or advisory body is appointed,
and the board, commission, or advisory body is otherwise subject to this
chapter.

(2) “Multijurisdictional” means either of the following:

Note: There are sequential gaps throughout the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government Code §§
54950-54963) primarily because of how the California Legislature updates and changes the Government
Code over time. When in question, visit the Ca Legislative website

32



(A) A legislative body that includes representatives from more than one
county, city, city and county, or special district.

(B) A legislative body of a joint powers entity formed pursuant to an
agreement entered into in accordance with Article 1 (commencing with
Section 6500) of Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title 1.

(c) This section shall remain in effect only until January 1, 2030, and as of that date

is repealed.
(Added by Stats. 2025, Ch. 327, Sec. 15. (SB 707) Effective January 1, 2026. Repealed as of January 1, 2030, by its
own provisions.)

54954.

(@) Each legislative body of a local agency, except for advisory committees or
standing committees, shall provide, by ordinance, resolution, bylaws, or by
whatever other rule is required for the conduct of business by that body, the time
and place for holding regular meetings. Meetings of advisory committees or
standing committees, for which an agenda is posted at least 72 hours in advance of
the meeting pursuant to subdivision (a) of Section 54954.2, shall be considered for
purposes of this chapter as regular meetings of the legislative body.

(b) Regular and special meetings of the legislative body shall be held within the
boundaries of the territory over which the local agency exercises jurisdiction, except
to do any of the following:

(1) Comply with state or federal law or court order, or attend a judicial or
administrative proceeding to which the local agency is a party.

(2) Inspect real or personal property which cannot be conveniently brought within
the boundaries of the territory over which the local agency exercises jurisdiction
provided that the topic of the meeting is limited to items directly related to the
real or personal property.

(3) Participate in meetings or discussions of multiagency significance that are
outside the boundaries of a local agency’s jurisdiction. However, any meeting or
discussion held pursuant to this subdivision shall take place within the jurisdiction
of one of the participating local agencies and be noticed by all participating
agencies as provided for in this chapter.

(4) Meet in the closest meeting facility if the local agency has no meeting facility
within the boundaries of the territory over which the local agency exercises
jurisdiction, or at the principal office of the local agency if that office is located
outside the territory over which the agency exercises jurisdiction.

Note: There are sequential gaps throughout the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government Code §§
54950-54963) primarily because of how the California Legislature updates and changes the Government
Code over time. When in question, visit the Ca Legislative website

33



(707) 668-5655 ! CITY OF BLUE LAKE 111 Greenwood Road

Fax: (707) 668-5916 . CALIFORNIA P.O. Box 458
www.bluelake.ca.gov Blue Lake, CA 95525

Arts and Heritage Commission Minutes

Monday, December 8", 2026 ~ 6pm ~
Skinner Store Building ~ 111 Greenwood Rd., Blue Lake ~ Behind City Hall

1 1. CALL TO ORDER AND ESTABLUSH A QUORUM OF THE COMMISSION: Meeting

2 called to order by (who?) at 6:32.

3

4 COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: Who was present? What are their titles? Aka, Chair,

5 Vice, Secretary, Commissioner

6

7 COMMISSIONERS ABSENT: Any?

8

9
10 2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA - Motion by (Title),Barbara Russell to approve the
11 agenda. Second by (Title) Sherri Green. Motion passed unanimously (?) if not,
12 what was the result of the vote.
13
14 3. PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS - None Received
15
16
17 ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION
18
19
20 4. APPROVE NOVEMBER 10™ 2025 MEETING MINUTES: Corrections were made to the
21 minutes (by who) (title) Barabar Russell motion to approve the minutes with corrections.
22 Second by Chair Ruah Phillips. Motion passed unanimously (?) if not, what was the
23 result of the vote.
24
25 5. LAND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: (title) BarbarasRussell and Chair Ruah Phillips agreed
26 to go together and talk.to the Rancheria for tribal names and suggestions. Further
27 discussionsat.the next Arts and Heritage meeting. No action
28
29
30 6..UPDATE OF THE SURVEY FOR BL RESIDENTS: The survey was discussed.
31 Suggestions were made and (title) Sherri Green and (title) Barbara Russell are going to
32 rework the survey and present it in January. Discussion on how to distribute the survey
33 will be tabled until next meeting.
34 a. Justin (is this public comment? A commissioner?) recommends using Blue Lake
35 Happenings Page and anyone can repost it on any other FB site they want. Major
36 Pro Tem Scafani directed commissioners to present the revised survey to City
37 Council..No Action
38 7. MURALS AND SCULPTURE — AD HOC COMMITTEE UPDATE: Chair Ruah Phillips
39 got no response from calls to CR or HSU regarding sculptures. (title) Barbara Russell will
40 talk to BL art teacher to see if students want to get involved. Dell Arte doesn’t want a
41 mural on the south side of building. (title) Sherri Green will contact a couple muralist

1



(707) 668-5655 . CITY OF BLUE LAKE 111 Greenwood Road
Fax: (707) 668-5916 . CALIFORNIA P.O. Box 458
www.bluelake.ca.gov Blue Lake, CA 95525

Arts and Heritage Commission Minutes

Monday, December 8", 2026 ~ 6pm ~
Skinner Store Building ~ 111 Greenwood Rd., Blue Lake ~ Behind City Hall

42 about recommendations of who can restore the mural on corner of Railroad and G st. No
43 Action

44

45 8. CITY LOGO: Chair Ruah Phillips will play with different color options. Discussion and

46 possible action will take place during the next meeting. No action

47

48 9. BANNERS ON GREENWOOD IDEAS: It was presented (when? During the meeting?) to
49 Arts and Heritage that the Chamber of Commerce would like some new ideas for

50 banners. Arts and Heritage Commissioners expressed desires to put more thought into
51 potential ideas and suggested presenting it to the Blue Lake School to see if they wanted
52 students to be involved. Discussion to continue at the'nmext Arts and Heritage meeting.

53 No action

54

55 10.FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS:

56 a. Sculptures and Mural Updates

57 b. Follow up on City Logo

58 c. Follow up on Land Acknowledgement

59 d. Follow up on Revised Survey and. how to distribute.

60

61 Adjourn at (What time?)

62

63

64

65



Land Acknowledgments Draft Proposal

Fourth Draft for Community and Commission Input

We acknowledge that we gather on the unceded lands of the Wiyot peoples,
including the neighboring Blue Lake Rancheria, who have been in relationship
with these lands through culture and stewardship for millennia. We honor their
enduring connection to this place - the lands, the waters, and the skies that sustain
life here. We also acknowledge the interconnection of this land with all peoples
who make Blue Lake their home today. As city leaders, commissions, and
neighbors, we commit to listening to, learning from, and supporting one another.
Equally, we affirm our responsibility to each other and to future generations by
pledging to advance policies and practices that protect the environment; that honor
all life; and that foster equity, healing, and opportunity for those who call this place
home.



Arts & Heritage Commission Survey

The Arts and Heritage Commission of Blue Lake objectives are to preserve and advance the arts, culture,
and historic heritage of our community.

Please help us connect the Art & Heritage’s mission with our community by filling out the
survey and supplying your suggestions and comments. Keeping in mind the City of Blue Lake
has very limited funds we will have to rely on our collective creative knowledge, skills and
resources.

1. Tell us what you love and appreciate about Blue Lake.
ART —
2. What kind and where would you like to see displays of art around Blue Lake?

Suggestions of art displays can include community or individual murals, large or small art pieces.
They can reflect the local history and culture, our beautiful surrounding nature and the activities it
offers us, the present community etc.

List your ideas as to how we can fund these projects.

3. Would you volunteer your time and talents? If so, please list your talents and your suggestions of
how you would be willing to help.

CULTURE-

4. What kind of cultural events and celebrations would you like to see in Blue
Lake?

Give your ideas and specifics of what and how you think these events would look like. Please list how
you are willing to help by bringing your skills to this project.

HISTORY/HERITAGE-
5. what kind of events that celebrate our history would you like to see in Blue Lake?

Give your ideas and specifics of what and how you think these events would look like. How can you
help us out?

{Suggestions such as neighborhood homes historic walking tour, cemetery and graves tour, local lore and
storytelling, Native American stories and site talks, etc}

6. We have the opportunity to create the future history of Blue Lake. What are your thoughts and
suggestions on how to do that?

Please list any other suggestion or comments. How can we creatively bond our community through
the power of art, culture and history?

7. Would you like to join the Arts and Heritage Commission?
8. Please use a separate piece of paper to record your answers.






Blue Lake Street Banners

IDEA #1:
Could hire a graphic artist or ask for a community volunteer to design them all.

IDEA #2:

Could ask a group of local artists to create them.

Example=Story on new banners painted annually by local artists with recognition in Destin, Florida:
https://www.thedestinlog.com/story/news/2024/07/08/new-banners-by-local-artist-go-up-on-main-street-in-destin/
74223012007/

IDEAS #3 (RUAH’S FAVORITE):
Local (either town/vicinity wide or Humboldt County) Art Completion.
- Appeal for work could be put up on Chamber of Commerce and Blue Lake FB pages, on their webpages, as well as
on Instagram, TikTok, etc
« Also announced in local papers and local news websites
« Submissions could be narrowed down by Chamber of Commerce and/or A&H Commission.
« Public could then get to vote on the winners.
« Could be an annual competition with specialized themes and/or demographics
. Could be a $5 entrance fee and the fee could then be used as prizes for the winners and/or to fund the banner
printing....
- Could also sell the winning banners at the end of the display term as an auction/fundraiser for the next year’s banner
prizes and/or printing
Examples:

1. Spokane Street Banner Contest:
https://www.hillyardspokane.org/streetlightbanners

2. City of Richmond does an annual competition where people can vote on their favorite:
https://richmondstreetbanners.squarespace.com/home-2021
https://www.instagram.com/reel/DPmrVoCDqIG/
https://www.instagram.com/reel/DOtbiH CgDc/

3. Cupertino Street Banner Contest with high-school youth:
https://www.cupertino.gov/Your-City/Departments/Public-Works/Transportation-Mobility/Safe-Routes-to-
School-SR2S/Streetlight-Banner-Contest

4. Whistler Street Banner Contest:
https://www.whistler.ca/parks-recreation-culture/arts-and-culture/lamppost-banner-program/



https://www.thedestinlog.com/story/news/2024/07/08/new-banners-by-local-artist-go-up-on-main-street-in-destin/74223012007/
https://www.thedestinlog.com/story/news/2024/07/08/new-banners-by-local-artist-go-up-on-main-street-in-destin/74223012007/
https://www.hillyardspokane.org/streetlightbanners
https://richmondstreetbanners.squarespace.com/home-2021
https://www.instagram.com/reel/DPmrVoCDqlG/
https://www.instagram.com/reel/DOtbiH_CgDc/
https://www.cupertino.gov/Your-City/Departments/Public-Works/Transportation-Mobility/Safe-Routes-to-School-SR2S/Streetlight-Banner-Contest
https://www.cupertino.gov/Your-City/Departments/Public-Works/Transportation-Mobility/Safe-Routes-to-School-SR2S/Streetlight-Banner-Contest
https://www.whistler.ca/parks-recreation-culture/arts-and-culture/lamppost-banner-program/

Sunrise Line Adjustment Sunset Line Adjustment



	1) 3.9 Agenda
	2) Resolution 1202 - Arts & Hertiage
	3) Brown Act 2026
	4) DRAFT Minutes for 12.8.25
	5) Land Acknowledgement Draft
	6) Arts & Heritage Survey 2025
	7) Street Banner Ideas
	8) City Logo Discussion



